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Smith&Associates, CPAs 
A Professional Association   

500 US Route One, Suite 102 • Yarmouth, Maine 04096 
Ph (207) 846-8881 • Fax (207) 846-8882 

www.smithassociatescpa.com 
 
 
Board of Selectmen and Manager 
TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
Vinalhaven, Maine 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, 
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Vinalhaven for the 
year ended June 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated July 17, 2020.  Professional 
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to the audit. 
 
Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
 
As stated in our engagement letter dated December 13, 2019, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by 
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with the 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. 
 
As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Town of Vinalhaven.  Such 
considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide 
any assurance concerning such internal control.  Our audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve you of your responsibilities. 
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 
 
We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you 
in writing in the engagement letter dated December 13, 2019. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
We noted no significant audit findings in performing and completing our audit, but wish to make the 
following recommendations: 

 
Formal Policy Review 
Several policies should be written, adopted and implemented for the Town.  The process of 
planning and formulating effective policies is vital to any Town.  Only through a management 
consensus and careful consideration of policy planning and implementation can a Town ensure 
effective overall operation in both the present and the future.  Frequent revisions to these 
policies are necessary to meet future needs of the Town.  We believe the adoption of these 
written policies constitutes an improvement to the internal control system by formally 
improving, crystallizing and documenting the present procedures.  With such ongoing review 
of policies, periodic changes in officials and employees should not affect the continuity or 
accuracy of the financial records as long as these policies are adhered to.   
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Significant Audit Findings (Continued) 
 
Formal Policy Review (Continued) 
We recommend written policies in the following areas, and would be happy to assist in their 
development and implementation if desired: 
 

 Reconciliations and Reviews 
 Computer Back-Ups, Access and Passwords 
 Conflict of Interest/Related Party Transactions 
 Fund Balance Policy 

 
Internal Accounting for Other Funds and Switch to TRIO Accounting 
As noted in the past, the Town maintains a number of governmental funds other than its general fund, 
which are used to account for capital project reserves, special revenues, and various permanent funds.  
Some of these funds are comprised solely of amounts held within the general fund and are due to such 
other funds; others are comprised solely of cash or investments held apart from the general fund; and 
still others are comprised of a combination of these types of assets.  Accordingly, the accounting for the 
activities and balances in each such fund can become rather involved. Currently, the full accounting for 
such funds takes place each year as part of the audit process.  We believe a better approach would be 
for the Town to implement a system whereby such accounting was being performed internally each 
month.  Doing so would enhance the Town’s internal control over these funds, and also provide for a 
more efficient year-end audit process.  We understand the Town continues the process of converting its 
budgetary and financial accounting from Peachtree to TRIO, and believe this could be an opportune 
time to make this change as well.  We would be happy to assist in this process if desired. 
 
Accounting for Leases – GASB Statement No. 87 
As noted last year, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) had previously issued 
its Statement No. 85, Leases.  Under this new standard, substantially all leases will now require 
treatment as capital leases, rather than as operating leases.  Initially this standard was scheduled to 
become effective for the Town for its fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.  In response to the COVID 
-19 pandemic the GASB has recently postponed the effective date for this new guidance, and 
accordingly, the Town will now be required to implement this new standard with its fiscal year 
commencing July 1, 2021.  We would encourage the Town to consider the extent to which this 
change will impact its financial reporting to facilitate its implementation to the extent necessary.  
We would be happy to assist in this regard to the extent desired. 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application.  The significant accounting policies 
used by the Town of Vinalhaven are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.   
 
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed 
during fiscal year ending June 20, 2019.  We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental 
unit during the year for which there is lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  There are no 
significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period 
than when the transaction occurred. 
 
 



Annual Town Report 2018-2019

Town of Vinalhaven 48

Town of Vinalhaven                         Page 3 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices (continued) 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about the past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimate affecting 
the financial statements was: 

 
Useful Lives 
Management’s estimates of the useful lives of depreciable assets are based according to the 
Town’s and District’s Fixed Asset Policy.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used 
to develop the useful lives schedule contained in the Fixed Asset Policies in determining that it 
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Pension and OPEB Balances 
Management’s estimates of the Town’s net pension liability, OPEB liabilities and related 
balances were based on audited and unaudited information for the plans as provided by the 
Maine Public Employees Retirement System and Maine Municipal Employees Health Trust . 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions in developing these estimates in determining 
them to be reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

 
The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.  Certain financial 
statements disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statement users.  The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was: 
 

Property Taxes 
The disclosure of Property Taxes in Note 3 to the financial statements describes the assessed 
value, the tax rate, the year end taxes receivable and overall collection rate for the Town.  The 
collection rate is a guideline for cash flow and budgeting purposes in the next calendar year. 

 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management.  For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a 
proposed correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected 
except through our auditing procedures. An audit adjustment may or may not indicate matters that 
could have a significant effect on the Town's financial reporting process (that is, cause future 
financial statements to be materially misstated).  We are pleased to report that no material 
adjustments were required during the completion of our audit and the preparation of the financial 
statements. 
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Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement 
misstatements, other than an understatement of general fund accounts payable in the amount of 
$11,058.  Management has determined that the effects of this misstatement are immaterial, both 
individually and collectively, to the financial statements as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For the purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or audit matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that 
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Management Representation 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated July 17, 2020. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants.  

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship 
and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Selectmen, 
Manager and others within the Town, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 

SMITH & ASSOCIATES, CPAs 
     A Professional Association 

Yarmouth, Maine 
July 17, 2020 
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Smith&Associates, CPAs 
A Professional Association   

500 US Route One, Suite 102 • Yarmouth, Maine 04096 
Ph (207) 846-8881 • Fax (207) 846-8882 

www.smithassociatescpa.com 
 
 
REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
Board of Selectmen and Manager 
TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
Vinalhaven, Maine 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund and aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 
Vinalhaven, Maine as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 

Independent Auditors’ Report             Page 2 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinions on the Government-Wide Financial Statements and School 
District Fund Financial Statements 
 
As disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, information necessary to determine the 
amounts of any OPEB liabilities or similar amounts arising in conjunction with the Town’s 
participation in the Maine Education Association Benefit Trust health plan is not currently 
available.  The amounts, if any, by which the government-wide financial statements may be 
misstated as a result are not known.  Additionally, information necessary to determine the amounts 
of any obligation arising from the audit of Maine School Administrative District No. 8 by Maine 
Public Employees Retirement System (MEPERS) is not currently available. The amounts, if any, by 
which the governmental activities and applicable fund financial statements may be misstated as a 
result are not known. 
 
Qualified Opinions 
 
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on 
the Government-Wide Financial Statements”, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities and of the School 
District Fund of the Town as of June 30, 2019 and the changes in net position thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Unmodified Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund other than the School 
District Fund and aggregate remaining fund information of the Town as of June 30, 2019 and the 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary 
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matter 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule 
of the Town’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Town Pension 
Contributions, and the Schedules of the Town’s Group Life and Health Plan OPEB Liabilities and 
Related Ratios be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s response to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Basis for Qualified Opinions on the Government-Wide Financial Statements and School 
District Fund Financial Statements 
 
As disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, information necessary to determine the 
amounts of any OPEB liabilities or similar amounts arising in conjunction with the Town’s 
participation in the Maine Education Association Benefit Trust health plan is not currently 
available.  The amounts, if any, by which the government-wide financial statements may be 
misstated as a result are not known.  Additionally, information necessary to determine the amounts 
of any obligation arising from the audit of Maine School Administrative District No. 8 by Maine 
Public Employees Retirement System (MEPERS) is not currently available. The amounts, if any, by 
which the governmental activities and applicable fund financial statements may be misstated as a 
result are not known. 
 
Qualified Opinions 
 
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on 
the Government-Wide Financial Statements”, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities and of the School 
District Fund of the Town as of June 30, 2019 and the changes in net position thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Unmodified Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund other than the School 
District Fund and aggregate remaining fund information of the Town as of June 30, 2019 and the 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary 
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matter 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule 
of the Town’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Town Pension 
Contributions, and the Schedules of the Town’s Group Life and Health Plan OPEB Liabilities and 
Related Ratios be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s response to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) that accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not 
affected by this missing information.  
 

             
       SMITH & ASSOCIATES, CPAs 
            A Professional Association 
Yarmouth, Maine 
July 17, 2020 
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                    EXHIBIT I 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

                    Primary Government 
  

Governmental 
Activities 

Business -
Type 

Activities 

 
 

Total 
Assets    
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,313,240 $ 222,989 $ 5,536,229 
Taxes and Liens Receivable  279,089  0  279,089 
Accounts and Grants Receivable  324,989  165,271  490,260 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation  12,161,430  6,074,216  18,235,646 
    
Total Assets  $ 18,078,748 $ 6,462,476 $ 24,541,224 
    
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 85,662 $ 0 $ 85,662 
          
Liabilities    
Accounts Payable      $ 141,028 $ 20,633 $ 161,661 
Accrued Expenses  244,994  1,875  246,869 
Accrued Interest             2,946  0            2,946 
Non Current Liabilities    
  Due Within One Year  737,717  55,021  792,738 
  Due in More Than One Year  1,822,043  704,786  2,526,829 
     
Total Liabilities  $ 2,948,728 $ 782,315 $ 3,731,043 
    
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 25,453 $ 0 $ 25,453 
    
Net Position    
Net Investment in Capital Assets  $ 9,761,104 $ 5,314,409 $ 15,075,513 
Restricted     
  Tax Incremental Financing  121,967  0  121,967 
  Grant and Entitlement Purposes  83,989  0  83,989 
  School District  682,806  0  682,806 
  Sewer Hook Ups and Loans  20,870  0  20,870 
  Permanent Funds, Non-Expendable  226,785  0  226,785 
Unrestricted  4,292,708  365,752  4,658,460 
    
Total Net Position  $ 15,190,229 $ 5,680,161 $ 20,870,390 
 
 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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                                 EXHIBIT II 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
 
 

             
   
 
 
Functions/Programs 

 
 

Expenses 

 
Charges for 

Services 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

 
Governmental 

Activities 

Business -
Type 

Activities 

 
 

Total 
Primary Government       
Governmental Activities       
General Government  $ 684,364 $ 29,393 $ 0 $ (654,971) $ 0 $ (654,971) 
Public Works and Sanitation  1,167,955  166,430  56,955  (944,570)  0  (944,570) 
Public Safety  597,092  94,068  6,835  (496,189)  0  (496,189) 
Culture and Recreation  94,689  20,851  0  (73,838)  0  (73,838) 
Public Health and Welfare  2,773  0  0  (2,773)  0  (2,773) 
Education  4,339,190  148,675  1,087,681  (3,102,834)  0  (3,102,834) 
Fixed Charges  545,053  0  0  (545,053)  0  (545,053) 
Interest on Long-Term Debt  13,234  0  0  (13,234)  0  (13,234) 
Depreciation – Unallocated  225,642  0  0  (225,642)  0  (225,642) 
       
Total Government Activities $ 7,669,992 $ 459,417 $ 1,151,471 $ (6,059,104) $ 0 $ (6,059,104) 
       
Business - Type Activities       
Wastewater Department $ 493,239 $ 293,080 $ 7,500 $ 0 $ (192,659) $ (192,659) 
School District  666  315  0  0  (351)  (351) 
       
Total Business - Type  
Activities $ 493,905 $ 293,395 $ 7,500 $ 0 $ (193,010) $ (193,010) 
       
Total Primary Government $ 8,163,897 $ 752,812 $ 1,158,971 $ (6,059,104) $ (193,010) $ (6,252,114) 
 

General Revenues    
Property and Other Taxes $ 6,710,288 $ 0 $ 6,710,288 
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to  
  Special Programs  99,111  0  99,111 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings  53,463  3,051  56,514 
Miscellaneous Income  51,178  0  51,178 
    
Total General Revenues $ 6,914,040 $ 3,051 $ 6,917,091 
    
Changes in Net Position  $      854,936 $ (189,959) $ 664,977 
    
Net Position – July 1, 2018 $ 14,335,293 $ 5,870,120 $20,205,413 
    
Net Position – June 30, 2019 $ 15,190,229  $ 5,680,161 $20,870,390 

 
 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 

Program Revenues 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Assets 
Primary Government 
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                     EXHIBIT III 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
  

General  
Fund 

 
School  
District 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
Assets     
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,842,056 $ 660,459 $ 1,810,725 $ 5,313,240 
Taxes and Liens Receivable  279,089  0  0  279,089 
Accounts and Grants Receivable    95,047  208,912  13,597  317,556 
Due from Other Funds  73,102  130,335  853,330  1,056,767 
     
Total Assets $ 3,289,294 $ 999,706 $ 2,677,652 $ 6,966,652 
     
Deferred Outflows of Resources  0  0  0  0 
     
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of 
Resources $ 3,289,294 $ 999,706 $ 2,677,652 $ 6,966,652 
     
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Fund Balance     
Liabilities     
  Accounts Payable $ 74,322 $ 66,706 $ 0 $ 141,028 
  Accrued Expenses  22,839  212,753  0  235,592 
  Due to Other Funds  562,556  290,774  196,004  1,049,334 
     
Total Liabilities $ 659,717 $ 570,233 $ 196,004 $ 1,425,954 
     
Deferred Inflows of Resources     
  Unavailable Revenue – Property Taxes $ 126,458 $ 0 $ 0 $ 126,458 
     
Fund Balance     
Nonspendable     
  Permanent Funds – Non-Expendable $ 0 $ 0 $ 226,785 $ 226,785 
Restricted     
  Tax Incremental Financing  0  0  121,967  121,967 
  Grant and Entitlement Purposes  0  0  83,989  83,989 
  Sewer Hook Ups and Loans  0  0  20,870  20,870 
Committed     
  Capital Projects  0  0  1,889,913  1,889,913 
  Appropriated for FY 2019/20  150,408  200,000  0  350,408 
  School Department  0  229,473  0  229,473 
Assigned     
  Cemetery Restoration Reserve  10,000  0  0  10,000 
  Permanent Funds – Expendable  0  0  209,176  209,176 
Unassigned     
  Capital Project Fund Deficits  0  0  (62,703)  (62,703) 
  Special Revenue Fund Deficits  0  0  (8,349)  (8,349) 
  General Fund  2,342,711  0  0  2,342,711 
     
Total Fund Balance $ 2,503,119 $ 429,473 $ 2,481,648 $ 5,414,240 
     
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Fund Balance $ 3,289,294 $ 999,706 $ 2,677,652 $ 6,966,652 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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           EXHIBIT IV 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
Total Fund Balance – Total Governmental Funds $ 5,414,240 
  
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net  
Position are Different Because:  
  
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not  
current financial resources and therefore are not  
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.  12,161,430 
  
Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current  
financial resources and therefore interest payable is not reported  
as a liability in Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.  (12,348) 
  
Unavailable property tax revenues are not available to pay for  
Current financial expenditures and, therefore, are deferred inflows  
of resources.  117,011 
  
Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period  
and therefore they are not reported in the Governmental Funds   
Balance Sheet:  
  
            Due in One Year    $   737,717  
            Due in More Than One Year     1,784,098  
            Accrued Compensated Absence Payable        37,945  (2,559,760) 
  
Differences Between Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows Relating 
To OPEB Plans Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 75. 

 
 4,061 

  
Differences Between Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows Regarding  
Related Pension Expenses Due to Implementation of GASB No. 68.  65,595 
  
Net Position of Governmental Activities    $ 15,190,229 
  
 
 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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                      EXHIBIT V 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
  

General  
Fund 

 
School 
District 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
Revenues     
Taxes $ 3,298,825 $ 3,238,689 $ 159,510 $ 6,697,024 
Intergovernmental  127,253  701,946  261,654  1,090,853 
Licenses, Permits and Fees  45,862  0  0  45,862 
Charges for Services  264,881  36,738  2,453  304,072 
Investment Income  29,549  8,534  25,173  63,256 
On-Behalf Pension/OPEB Contributions  0  159,729  0  159,729 
Miscellaneous  4,660  57,516  88,692  150,868 
     
Total Revenues $ 3,771,030 $ 4,203,152 $ 537,482 $ 8,511,664 
     
Expenditures     
Current     
  General Government $ 522,562 $ 0 $ 149,873 $ 672,435 
  Public Works and Sanitation  1,155,866  0  8,777  1,164,643 
  Public Safety  584,447  0  12,645  597,092 
  Culture and Recreation  92,757  0  1,932  94,689 
  Public Health and Welfare  2,773  0  0  2,773 
  Debt Service  134,320  0  0  134,320 
  Education  0  4,161,267  223,600  4,384,867 
  Fixed Charges  545,053  0  0  545,053 
Capital Outlay  0  0  502,846  502,846 
     
Total Expenditures $ 3,037,778 $ 4,161,267 $ 899,673 $ 8,098,718 
     
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures $ 733,252 $ 41,885 $ (362,191) $ 412,946 
     
Other Financing Sources (Uses)      
Transfers In (Out) $ (336,500)  $ (2,542)  $ 339,042  $ 0 
Proceeds from Borrowing  0  0  157,925          157,925 
Total Other Financing Sources $ (336,500)  $ (2.542) $ 496,967 $ 157,925 
     
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 396,752 $ 39,343 $ 134,776 $ 570,871 
     
Fund Balance – July 1, 2018  2,106,367  390,130  2,346,872  4,843,369 
     
Fund Balance – June 30, 2019 $ 2,503,119 $ 429,473 $ 2,481,648 $ 5,414,240 

 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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                 EXHIBIT VI 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
Net Change in Fund Balance – Total Governmental Funds  $ 570,871 
  
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net  
Position are Different Because:  
  
Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets  
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as   
depreciation expense.  This is the amount of capital assets  
recorded in the current period, net of disposals of same.  418,003 
  
Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the   
Government-Wide Statement of Activities and changes in net   
position, but they do not require the use of current financial  
resources.  Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as  
expenditure in governmental funds.  (689,801) 
  
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. accrued compensated  
Absence pay) provides current financial resources to  
Governmental Funds, while the repayment of long-term debt  
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.  
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.  
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the  
treatment of long-term debt and related items.  545,802 
      
Some property tax will not be collected for several months after the  
Town’s fiscal year end; they are not considered  current financial resources  
in the Governmental Funds.  This amount is the net effect of the differences.  13,264 
  
Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the Government-  
Wide Statement of Activities and changes in net position, but does not require   
the use of current financial resources; therefore, accrued interest expense is  
not reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds.  (861) 
  

Changes in Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows and Net OPEB Liability  
Relating to Implementation of GASB Statement No. 75.  (7,532) 
  
Changes Between Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows Related  
to Pension Expenses and Net Pension Liability Due to Implementation   
of GASB No. 68.  5,190 
  
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities        $ 854,936 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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                      EXHIBIT VII 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
        

 
 
 
 
Revenues 

 
 
 
 

Original 

 
 
 
 

Final 

 
 
 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance 
with Final 

Budget 
Positive 

(Negative) 
     

Taxes  $ 6,441,442 $ 6,441,442 $ 6,537,514 $ 96,072 
Intergovernmental  150,831  150,831  127,253  (23,578) 
Licenses, Permits and Fees  60,100  60,100  45,862  (14,238) 
Charges for Services  180,000  180,000  264,881  84,881 
Investment Income  12,000  12,000  29,549  17,549 
Miscellaneous  3,350  3,350  4,660  1,310 
     
Total Revenues $ 6,847,723 $ 6,847,723 $ 7,009,719 $ 161,996 
     
Expenditures     
Current     
  General Government $ 551,353 $ 551,353 $ 522,562 $ 28,791 
  Public Works and Sanitation  1,223,385  1,223,385  1,155,866  67,519 
  Public Safety  716,001  716,001  584,447  131,554 
  Culture and Recreation  108,215  108,215  92,757  15,458 
  Public Health and Welfare  12,433  12,433  2,773  9,660 
  Debt Service  171,000  171,000  134,320  36,680 
  Education  3,238,689  3,238,689  3,238,689  0 
  Fixed Charges  563,063  563,063  545,053  18,010 
Capital Outlay  0  0  0  0 
     
Total Expenditures $ 6,584,139 $ 6,584,139 $ 6,276,467 $ 307,672 
     
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures $ 263,584 $ 263,584 $ 733,252 $ 469,668 
     
Other Financing Sources (Uses)     
Transfers In (Out) $ (336,500) $ (336,500) $ (336,500) $ 0 
     
Net Change in Fund Balances $ (72,916) $ (72,916) $ 396,752 $ 469,668 
     
Fund Balance – July 1, 2018  2,106,367  2,106,367  2,106,367  0 
     
Fund Balance – June 30, 2019 $ 2,033,451 $ 2,033,451 $ 2,503,119 $ 469,668 

 
This Exhibit VII reflects the Town-only appropriations which include the school appropriation as voted at 
Town Meeting. Exhibit V in the audit reflects a “blended” version of the Actual Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance. 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 

 
Budgeted Amounts 
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           EXHIBIT VIII 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
             Business-Type Activities – Enterprise Funds 

  
 

Wastewater 

 
School 
District 

Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 
Assets    
Current Assets    
  Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 215,515 $ 7,474 $ 222,989 
  Accounts Receivable  165,271  0  165,271 
    
Total Current Assets $ 380,786 $ 7,474 $ 388,260 
    
Noncurrent Assets    
  Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)  6,074,216  0  6,074,216 
    
Total Assets $ 6,455,002 $ 7,474 $ 6,462,476 
    
Liabilities    
Current Liabilities    
  Accounts Payable $ 13,200 $ 0 $ 13,200 
  Accrued Expenses  1,875  0  1,875 
  Due to Other Funds  0  7,433  7,433 
  Bonds Payable    55,021  0  55,021 
    
Total Current Liabilities $ 70,096 $ 7,433 $ 77,529 
    
Noncurrent Liabilities       
  Bonds Payable  704,786  0  704,786 
    
Total Liabilities $ 774,882 $ 7,433 $ 782,315 
    
Net Position    
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 5,314,409 $ 0 $ 5,314,409 
Unrestricted  365,711  41  365,752 
    
Total Net Position $ 5,680,120 $ 41 $ 5,680,161 
 
 
 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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                    EXHIBIT IX 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

        Business - Type Activities – Enterprise Funds 
  

 
Wastewater 

 
School 
District 

Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 
Operating Revenues    
Charges for Sales and Services    
  User Fees $ 293,080 $ 315 $ 293,395 
  Miscellaneous  7,500  0  7,500 
    
Total Operating Revenues $ 300,580 $ 315 $ 300,895 
    
Operating Expenses    
Cost of Sales and Service $ 240,665 $ 0 $ 240,665 
Depreciation   239,460  0  239,460 
Administration  2,260  666  2,926 
    
Total Operating Expenses $ 482,385 $ 666 $ 483,051 
    
Operating Income (Loss) $ (181,805) $ (351) $ (182,156) 
    
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)    
Investment Income $ 2,960 $ 91 $ 3,051 
Interest Expense  (10,854)  0  (10,854) 
    
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) $ (7,894) $ 91 $ (7,803) 
    
Changes in Net Position $ (189,699) $ (260) $ (189,959) 
    
Net Position – July 1, 2018  5,869,819  301  5,870,120 
    
Net Position – June 30, 2019 $ 5,680,120 $ 41 $ 5,680,161 
 
 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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                       EXHIBIT X 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 

                 Business-Type Activities – Enterprise Funds 
  

 
Wastewater 

 
School 
District 

Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities    
Receipts from Customers $ 282,914 $ 315 $ 283,229 
Payments to Vendors and Employees  (240,230)  0  (240,230) 
    
Net Cash Provided by (Used) in Operating Activities $ 42,684 $ 315 $ 42,999 
    
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing 
Activities 

   

Principal and Interest Paid During the Year $ (65,465) $ 91 $ (65,374) 
    
Cash Flow from Noncapital Financing Activities    
Transfers to Other Funds $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 
    
Cash Flows from Investing Activities    
Investment Income Received $ 2,960 $ 0 $ 2,960 
    
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash $ (19,821) $ 406 $ (19,415) 
    
Cash and Cash Equivalents– July 1, 2018  235,336  7,068  242,404 
    
Cash and Cash Equivalents – June 30, 2019 $ 215,515 $ 7,474 $ 222,989 
    
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by (Used) in Operating Activities: 

   

Operating Income (Loss) $ (181,805) $ (351) $ (182,156) 
    
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by (Used) in Operating Activities 

   

Depreciation Expense $ 239,460 $ 0 $ 239,460 
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable  (17,666)  0  (17,666) 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable   2,695  0  2,695 
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds  0  0  0 
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses  0  666  666 
    
Total Adjustments $ 224,489 $ 666 $ 225,155 
    
Net Cash Provided by (Used) in Operating Activities $ 42,684 $ 315 $ 42,999 

 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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           EXHIBIT XI 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
  

Agency 
 Funds 

Assets  
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 66,555 
  
Liabilities  
Amounts Held for Others $ 66,555 
  
Net Position $ 0 
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 



Annual Town Report 2018-2019

Town of Vinalhaven 66

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. – General Statement 
 
The Town of Vinalhaven, Maine was incorporated in 1789 under the laws of the State of Maine and 
currently operates under a Town Manager-Selectmen Form of Government.  The accompanying 
financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the government 
is considered financially accountable, fiscally dependent or because of the nature and significance of 
its relationship with the Town of Vinalhaven.  Blended component units, although legally separate 
entities, are in substance, part of the government’s operations. 
 
Maine School Administrative District No. 8 serves all the citizens of the government and because of 
the nature and significance of its relationship with the Town has been included.  A complete financial 
statement of the District is available at the Superintendent’s Office.  
 
The accounting and reporting policies of the Town relating to the funds and account groups included in 
the accompanying financial statements conform to generally accepted accounting principles as 
applicable to state and local governments.  Generally accepted accounting principles for local 
governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of 
State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (when 
applicable).  The more significant accounting policies of the Town are described below. 
 
In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved 
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for 
State and Local Governments.  Certain of the significant changes in the Statement include the 
following: 
 

The financial statements include: 
 

 A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the 
Town’s overall financial position and results of operations, which has not been presented 
as indicated in the Independent Auditors’ Report. 

 
 Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the Town’s 

activities. 
 

 A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds. 
 
These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements including 
notes to financial statements. 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

B. – Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The Town's combined financial statements include the accounts of all Town of Vinalhaven operations.  
The criteria for including organizations as component units within the Town's reporting entity, as set 
forth in Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards, include whether: 

 
 The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name). 
 The Town holds the corporate powers of the organization. 
 The Town appoints a voting majority of the organization's board. 
 The Town is able to impose its will on the organization. 
 The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the Town. 
 There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the Town. 

 
Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Town of Vinalhaven has no component units that are not 
included in this report. 
 
C. – Financial Statements – Government-Wide Statements 
  
The Town’s financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town as a whole) 
and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds).  Both the government-wide and 
fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. 
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type 
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column (b) and are reported on a full 
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as 
long-term debt and obligations.  The Town’s net position are reported in three parts – Net 
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.  The Town first 
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 

 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the 
Town’s functions.  The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property 
taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, etc).  The Statement of Activities 
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital 
grants.  Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity.  
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (whether operating or capital) grants 
while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. 
 
The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc). 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

B. – Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The Town's combined financial statements include the accounts of all Town of Vinalhaven operations.  
The criteria for including organizations as component units within the Town's reporting entity, as set 
forth in Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Standards, include whether: 

 
 The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name). 
 The Town holds the corporate powers of the organization. 
 The Town appoints a voting majority of the organization's board. 
 The Town is able to impose its will on the organization. 
 The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the Town. 
 There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the Town. 

 
Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Town of Vinalhaven has no component units that are not 
included in this report. 
 
C. – Financial Statements – Government-Wide Statements 
  
The Town’s financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town as a whole) 
and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds).  Both the government-wide and 
fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type. 
 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type 
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column (b) and are reported on a full 
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as 
long-term debt and obligations.  The Town’s net position are reported in three parts – Net 
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.  The Town first 
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 

 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the 
Town’s functions.  The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property 
taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, etc).  The Statement of Activities 
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital 
grants.  Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity.  
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (whether operating or capital) grants 
while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. 
 
The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc). 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

D. – Financial Statements – Fund Financial Statements 
 
The financial transactions of the Town are reported in individual funds in the fund financial 
statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.  The 
various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements.  The following 
fund types are used by the Town. 
 

Governmental Funds 
 
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon 
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and 
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income.  The following is a description of 
the governmental funds of the Town: 

 
General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town.  It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that 
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.  The MSAD 8 School District is 
considered a major fund.  The Maine School Administrative District No. 8 provides 
elementary and secondary education to students on the Island of Vinalhaven.  The District’s 
financial statements include the operation of all organizations for which the Board of 
Education exercises oversight responsibility. 

 
Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-
type/proprietary funds).   
 
Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that 
only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting 
government’s programs, that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry. A 
permanent fund would be used, for example, to account for the perpetual care endowment of 
a municipal cemetery. 
 

Proprietary Funds 
 

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, 
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows.  The generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector.  The 
following is a description of the proprietary funds of the Town of Vinalhaven: 

 
 

 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. – Financial Statements – Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

 
Proprietary Funds (Continued) 

 
Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that 
is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has a third party requirement that the 
cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) 
establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs.  
The Wastewater Department, a major fund, operates in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises.  The intent is that costs for sewer services provided to the general public on a 
continuing basis be recovered or financed primarily through charges to users.  Maine 
Administrative District No. 8 maintains one enterprise fund, the Smith Hokansen Memorial 
Hall Fund.  These funds are intended to improve the educational experience for District 
students. 
 

Fiduciary Funds 
 

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in an agency capacity for others and therefore 
are not available to support Town programs.  The reporting focus is on net position, changes 
in net position, which are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. 
 
The Town’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type 
(agency).  Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party 
(other local governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or 
obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide 
statements.  The Maine School Administrative District No. 8 Student Activities accounts are 
considered Fiduciary Funds. 

 
The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or 
business-type activities categories.  Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single 
column.  GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the 
determination of major funds.  The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial 
statements. 
 
E. – Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 
 
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues 
and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of 
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus 
applied. 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. – Financial Statements – Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

 
Proprietary Funds (Continued) 

 
Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that 
is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has a third party requirement that the 
cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) 
establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs.  
The Wastewater Department, a major fund, operates in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises.  The intent is that costs for sewer services provided to the general public on a 
continuing basis be recovered or financed primarily through charges to users.  Maine 
Administrative District No. 8 maintains one enterprise fund, the Smith Hokansen Memorial 
Hall Fund.  These funds are intended to improve the educational experience for District 
students. 
 

Fiduciary Funds 
 

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in an agency capacity for others and therefore 
are not available to support Town programs.  The reporting focus is on net position, changes 
in net position, which are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. 
 
The Town’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type 
(agency).  Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party 
(other local governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or 
obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide 
statements.  The Maine School Administrative District No. 8 Student Activities accounts are 
considered Fiduciary Funds. 

 
The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or 
business-type activities categories.  Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single 
column.  GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the 
determination of major funds.  The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial 
statements. 
 
E. – Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 
 
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues 
and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of 
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus 
applied. 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. – Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (Continued) 
 
The government-wide statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting.  The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and 
liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the 
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.  
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned.  Expenses are 
recognized at the time the liability is incurred. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under 
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., 
when they become both measurable and available.  “Measurable” means the amount of the 
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. 
 
A one-year availability period is used for recognition of all other Governmental fund revenues.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are 
recorded only when payment is due. 
 
F. – Budgetary Control 
 
Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for the general fund of the 
Town of Vinalhaven.   
 
The Town of Vinalhaven's policy is to adopt an annual budget for operations.  The budget is presented 
on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 
 
The following procedures are followed in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 
 

 Early in the second half of the last fiscal year the Town prepared a budget for this fiscal year 
beginning July 1st.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of 
financing them. 

 
 A meeting of the inhabitants of the Town of Vinalhaven was then called for the purpose of 

adopting the proposed budget after public notice of the meeting was given. 
 

 The budget was adopted subsequent to passage by the inhabitants of the Town. 
 
The Town does not adopt budgets for the Special Revenue Funds. 
  
 
 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
G. – Cash and Investments 
 
Maine statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, 
repurchase agreements and certain corporate stocks and bonds.  Generally, the Town invests certain 
funds in checking, savings accounts or certificates of deposit.   
 
The Town has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
cash with fiscal agent.  Investments are recorded at fair market value. 
 
H. - Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost.  Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of 
the date received.  Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the 
useful life of an asset are capitalized.  Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are 
expensed as incurred.  Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the 
following estimated useful lives: 
    

Land Improvements      20 Years 
Buildings and Improvements 7 - 40 Years 
Equipment 3 - 20 Years 
Vehicles 3 - 10 Years 
Infrastructure      40 Years 

 
The Town of Vinalhaven has elected not to retroactively report their major general infrastructure 
assets. 
 
I. - Compensated Absences 
 
The Town of Vinalhaven recognizes accumulated sick leave compensation during the period in 
which the related liability is incurred.  In compliance with the Town’s personnel policies, the total 
for accrued compensated absence pay was $37,945 at June 30, 2019. 
 
J. - Interfund Activity 
 
Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers.  Loans are 
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation.  Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as 
revenues and expenditures/expenses.  Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the 
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.  All other interfund 
transactions are treated as transfers.  Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are 
netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.  
 
K. – Equity Classifications 
 
Government-Wide Statements 
Net position represents the differences between assets and liabilities.  Equity is classified as 
net position and displayed in three components:  
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
G. – Cash and Investments 
 
Maine statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, 
repurchase agreements and certain corporate stocks and bonds.  Generally, the Town invests certain 
funds in checking, savings accounts or certificates of deposit.   
 
The Town has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
cash with fiscal agent.  Investments are recorded at fair market value. 
 
H. - Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost.  Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of 
the date received.  Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the 
useful life of an asset are capitalized.  Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are 
expensed as incurred.  Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the 
following estimated useful lives: 
    

Land Improvements      20 Years 
Buildings and Improvements 7 - 40 Years 
Equipment 3 - 20 Years 
Vehicles 3 - 10 Years 
Infrastructure      40 Years 

 
The Town of Vinalhaven has elected not to retroactively report their major general infrastructure 
assets. 
 
I. - Compensated Absences 
 
The Town of Vinalhaven recognizes accumulated sick leave compensation during the period in 
which the related liability is incurred.  In compliance with the Town’s personnel policies, the total 
for accrued compensated absence pay was $37,945 at June 30, 2019. 
 
J. - Interfund Activity 
 
Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers.  Loans are 
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation.  Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as 
revenues and expenditures/expenses.  Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the 
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.  All other interfund 
transactions are treated as transfers.  Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are 
netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.  
 
K. – Equity Classifications 
 
Government-Wide Statements 
Net position represents the differences between assets and liabilities.  Equity is classified as 
net position and displayed in three components:  
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
K. – Equity Classifications (Continued) 
 
Government-Wide Statements (Continued) 
 

 Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, 
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets. 

 
 Restricted net position – consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 

(1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
 Unrestricted net position – all other net position that do not meet the definition of 

“restricted” or  “net investment in capital assets.” 
 
Fund Statements 
 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. In the governmental fund financial 
statements, fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, or unrestricted 
(committed, assigned or unassigned).  Restricted represents those portions of fund balance 
where constraints placed on the resources are either externally imposed or imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Committed fund balance represents 
amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by 
formal action of the Board of Selectmen, such as an appropriation. Assigned fund balance is 
constrained by the Board’s intent to be used for specific purposes by directive.  See Note 10 
for additional information about fund balances.  
 

L. – Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources  
 
The Town has implemented the following statements: 
 

GASB No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, and Net Position and GASB No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities. 
 
GASB 63 and GASB 65 amends GASB 34 to incorporate deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources into the financial reporting model. These terms are defined as 
follows: 

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources - a consumption of net position by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. It has a positive effect on net position, similar to assets.  
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources - an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable 
to a future reporting period. It has a negative effect on net position, similar to liabilities.  
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
L. – Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (Continued) 

 
The GASB emphasizes in GASB 63 that deferred inflows and deferred outflows are not assets or 
liabilities and therefore should be separately categorized in the financial statements.  
 
The deferred inflows and outflows of resources listed at June 30, 2019 in Exhibit I amounted to 
$25,453 (comprised of $9,392 relating to pension benefits, $9,447 relating to property taxes and 
$6,614 relating to OPEB) and $85,662 (comprised of $74,987 relating to pension benefits and 
$10,675 relating to OPEB).  Per Exhibit III, the modified accrual deferred inflows of resources 
amounted to $126,458 (all related to property taxes), and there was no deferred outflow of 
resources at that point in time. 

 
M. – Use of Estimates 
 
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management’s 
estimates and assumptions.  Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and 
expenses.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
N. – Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2019, primarily consist of miscellaneous intergovernmental and 
ambulance receivables. There is an allowance for doubtful accounts for ambulance receivables for 
the Town in the amount of $46,000. 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Maine statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies, 
repurchase agreements and certain corporate stocks and bonds.  Generally, the Town invests such 
excess funds in checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit or repurchase 
agreements. 
 
A.  Deposits 
At June 30, 2019, cash and cash equivalents of the Town and School District were all insured or 
collateralized and are all thus do not carry custodial credit risk.  
 
B.  Investments 

 
At June 30, 2019, the Town held no investments in securities. 
 
NOTE 3 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial 
insurance. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage’s during the fiscal year 
and no significant settlements that exceeded insurance coverage. 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
NOTE 4 – PROPERTY TAXES 
 
The Town is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes in accordance with 
enabling state legislation.  The Town of Vinalhaven’s property tax is levied on the assessed value listed 
as of the prior April 1st for all taxable real and personal property located in the Town.  Assessed values 
are periodically established by the Assessor at 100% of assumed market value.  The assessed value for 
the list of April 1, 2018, upon which the levy for the year ended June 30, 2019, was based, amounted to 
$506,949,651.  This assessed value was 100% of the estimated market value and 102.9% of the 2019 
State valuation of $492,650,000.  The Town is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy 
taxes up to 105% of its net budgeted expenditures for the related fiscal period.  The amount raised in 
excess of 100% is referred to as overlay and amounted to $21,061 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
In the fund financial statements, property taxes are recognized in compliance with NCGA 
Interpretation-3 Revenue Recognition – Property Taxes which states that such revenue is recorded 
when it becomes measurable and available.  Available means due, or past due and receivable within the 
current period and collected no longer than 60 days after the close of the current period. 
 
Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax commitment date if 
taxes are delinquent.  The Town has the authority to foreclose on property eighteen months after the 
filing of the lien if tax liens and associated costs remain unpaid.   
 
The following summarizes the 2018-2019 levy: 
 

Assessed Value                                $ 506,949,651 
Less: BETE and Homestead Exemption            (4,224,179) 
Net Assessed Value  $ 502,725,472 
Tax Rate (Per $1,000)                        12.27 
Commitment     $ 6,168,442 
Supplemental Taxes Assessed   3,892 
Sub-Total $ 6,172,334 
Less:  Abatements   (3,052) 
          Collections   (5,933,239) 
Receivable at Year End  $ 236,043 
  
Collection Rate  96.1% 
  

 
Property taxes on real and personal property accounts were due on November 1, 2018 and  
May 1, 2019.  Interest was charged at 8% on delinquent accounts after those dates. 
 
NOTE 5 – JOINTLY GOVERNED VENTURE 
 
School Administrative District No. 8 is one of ten participants in the Region 8 Vocational School, a 
governmental unit which provides vocational training for its members’ students.  There is no equity 
interest; however, the District has an ongoing financial responsibility each year to fund a 
proportionate part of the Vocational School’s budget.  In fiscal year 2019, the District provided 
$77,733 in funding, or approximately 1.40% of the Vocational School’s budget of $5,544,632. 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 
 

 
 

Governmental Activities 

Beginning 
Balance 
July 1 

 
Additions/ 

Completions 
Retirements/ 
Adjustments 

Ending 
Balance 
June 30 

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated     
  Land and Construction in Progress $ 1,248,162 $ 59,561 $ 0 $ 1,307,723 
     
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated     
  Buildings and Improvements $15,624,903 $ 0 $ 0 $15,624,903 
  Machinery and Equipment  660,423  236,023  0  896,446 
  Vehicles  1,241,356  65,318  0  1,306,674 
  Infrastructure  3,368,812  57,101  0  3,425,913 
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $20,895,494 $ 358,442 $ 0 $21,253,936 
     
Less Accumulated Depreciation for     
  Buildings and Improvements $ 7,234,978 $ 503,710 $ 0 $ 7,738,688 
  Machinery and Equipment  621,131  12,240  0  633,371 
  Vehicles   1,016,701  89,630  0  1,106,331 
  Infrastructure  837,618  84,221  0  921,839 
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 9,710,428 $ 689,801 $ 0 $10,400,229 
     
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net $11,185,066 $ (331,359) $ 0 $10,853,707 
     
Governmental Activities Capital Assets,  
Net $12,433,228 $ (271,798) $ 0 $12,161,430 

 
Business-Type Activities     
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated     
  Land $ 87,734 $ 0 $ 0 $ 87,734 
     
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated     
  Buildings and Improvements $9,563,470 $ 0 $ 0 $9,563,470 
  Machinery and Equipment  14,912  0  0  14,912 
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $9,578,382 $ 0 $ 0 $9,578,382 
     
Less Accumulated Depreciation for     
  Buildings and Improvements $3,347,218 $ 239,087 $ 0 $3,586,305 
  Machinery and Equipment  5,222  373  0  5,595 
Total Accumulated Depreciation   $3,352,440 $ 239,460 $ 0 $3,591,900 
     
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net $6,225,942 $ (239,460) $ 0 $5,986,482 
     
Business-Type Activities, Net $6,313,676 $ (239,460) $ 0 $6,074,216 

 
Depreciation expense has not been charged as a direct expense, other than with respect to $464,159 in 
depreciation charged directly to the education function, and $239,460 charged directly to business-type 
activities.  
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

 
NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT  
 
At June 30, 2019, loans and bonds payable consisted of the following individual issues: 
 

  
Governmental 

Activities 

Business - 
Type 

Activities 
   
Bar Harbor Bank and Trust   
   
2015 Public Works Vehicle Bond of $85,000,    
Maturity 2019, Annual Principal Payments of   
$17,000 Plus Interest at 1.69%  17,000  0 
   
2015 Road Reconstruction and Paving Bond   
of $650,000, Maturity 2024, Annual Principal   
Payments of $65,000 Plus Interest at 2.39%  390,000  0 
   
2016 Public Works Truck Bond of $185,000,    
Maturity 2021, Annual Principal Payments of   
$37,000 Plus Interest at 1.79%  74,000  0 
   
Maine Municipal Bond Bank   
2002 School Construction Bond , Maturity on October 25, 2021,   
Annual Payments of $587,132 Plus Interest, 3.048% - 5.423%     
Interest Rate.  Subsequent to June 30, 2019, the Bond Bank revised  
the District’s future debt service obligations as the result of a favorable 
refunding issue recently completed by the Bond Bank, effectively  
eliminating the District’s interest obligations on this bond subsequent 
to June 30, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 1,761,400 

 
 
 
 
 0 

   
2019 General Obligation Bond, Interest of 3.39% Per Annum Paid   
Semi-Annually, Annual Principal Payments of $31,585 Each, Maturity   
In January, 2024.  157,925  0 
   
2011 State Revolving Loan Fund, Maturity 10/1/31,   
Annual Principal Payments of $ 51,319 - $61,999,   
Interest Rate 1%  0  759,807 
   
Total Loans and Bonds Payable $ 2,400,325 $ 759,807 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Changes in Outstanding Debt 
 
Transactions for the year ended June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows: 
 

 
Governmental Activities 

Balance 
July 1 

Issues or 
Additions 

Payments or 
Expenditures 

Balance 
June 30 

Due Within 
One Year 

General Obligation Bonds $ 2,948,533 $ 157,925 $ 706,133 $ 2,400,325 $ 737,717 
Net Pension Obligation  55,400  0  4,013  51,387  0 
Net OPEB Liability  70,964  0  862  70,102  0 
Accrued Compensated 
Absence Payable  35,540  2,405  0  37,945  0 
      
Total $3,110,437 $ 160,330 $ 711,008 $2,559,759 $ 737,717 
      
Business-Type Activities      
General Obligation Bonds  814,283  0  54,476  759,807  55,021 
      
Total $ 3,924,720 $ 160,330 $ 765,484 $ 3,319,566 $ 792,738 
 
Annual Requirements to Retire Debt Obligation 
 
The annual aggregate maturities for each debt type for the years subsequent to June 30, 2019, are as 
follows: 
                 Governmental Activities            Business-Type Activities 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 
2020 $ 737,717 $ 16,153 $ 55,021 $ 10,440 $ 819,331 
2021  720,717  12,713  55,571  9,888  798,889 
2022  683,721  9,426  56,128  9,326  758,601 
2023  96,585  6,802  56,688  8,765  168,840 
2024  96,585  4,178  57,255  8,198  166,216 
2025/29  65,000  1,554  294,980  31,659  393,193 
2030/34  0  0  184,164            12,682          196,846 
      
Total $ 2,400,321 $ 50,826 $ 759,807 $ 90,958 $ 3,301,916 

 
In accordance with 30-A MRSA, Section 5702, as amended, the amount of long-term debt that can be 
incurred by the Municipality is limited by state statute.  Total outstanding long-term obligations during a 
year can be no greater than 7.5%, with certain exceptions, of the state valuation of taxable property as of 
the beginning of the fiscal year.  As of June 30, 2019, the amount of outstanding long-term debt was equal 
to 0.24% of property valuation for the year then ended. 
 
Under a provision of state law, the State of Maine reimburses the School District for the financial 
costs of the approved School construction.  Annual principal and interest payments of $433,447 for 
the School’s long-term debt were received for the year ended June 30, 2019.  Such amounts were 
used to reduce the assessments levied to the participating municipality.  Future reimbursements are 
dependent upon appropriation by the legislature of the State of Maine. 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
Changes in Outstanding Debt 
 
Transactions for the year ended June 30, 2019, are summarized as follows: 
 

 
Governmental Activities 

Balance 
July 1 

Issues or 
Additions 

Payments or 
Expenditures 

Balance 
June 30 

Due Within 
One Year 

General Obligation Bonds $ 2,948,533 $ 157,925 $ 706,133 $ 2,400,325 $ 737,717 
Net Pension Obligation  55,400  0  4,013  51,387  0 
Net OPEB Liability  70,964  0  862  70,102  0 
Accrued Compensated 
Absence Payable  35,540  2,405  0  37,945  0 
      
Total $3,110,437 $ 160,330 $ 711,008 $2,559,759 $ 737,717 
      
Business-Type Activities      
General Obligation Bonds  814,283  0  54,476  759,807  55,021 
      
Total $ 3,924,720 $ 160,330 $ 765,484 $ 3,319,566 $ 792,738 
 
Annual Requirements to Retire Debt Obligation 
 
The annual aggregate maturities for each debt type for the years subsequent to June 30, 2019, are as 
follows: 
                 Governmental Activities            Business-Type Activities 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 
2020 $ 737,717 $ 16,153 $ 55,021 $ 10,440 $ 819,331 
2021  720,717  12,713  55,571  9,888  798,889 
2022  683,721  9,426  56,128  9,326  758,601 
2023  96,585  6,802  56,688  8,765  168,840 
2024  96,585  4,178  57,255  8,198  166,216 
2025/29  65,000  1,554  294,980  31,659  393,193 
2030/34  0  0  184,164            12,682          196,846 
      
Total $ 2,400,321 $ 50,826 $ 759,807 $ 90,958 $ 3,301,916 

 
In accordance with 30-A MRSA, Section 5702, as amended, the amount of long-term debt that can be 
incurred by the Municipality is limited by state statute.  Total outstanding long-term obligations during a 
year can be no greater than 7.5%, with certain exceptions, of the state valuation of taxable property as of 
the beginning of the fiscal year.  As of June 30, 2019, the amount of outstanding long-term debt was equal 
to 0.24% of property valuation for the year then ended. 
 
Under a provision of state law, the State of Maine reimburses the School District for the financial 
costs of the approved School construction.  Annual principal and interest payments of $433,447 for 
the School’s long-term debt were received for the year ended June 30, 2019.  Such amounts were 
used to reduce the assessments levied to the participating municipality.  Future reimbursements are 
dependent upon appropriation by the legislature of the State of Maine. 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 8 – INTERFUND ACTIVITY 
 
Interfund balances at June 30, 2019 consisted of the following: 
 

Due To  
General Fund $ 73,102     
School District 130,335 
Non-Major Governmental Funds  
  Special Revenue Funds - School  52,847 
  Capital Projects - School  237,927 
  Capital Projects – Town  559,642 
  Permanent Funds - Town  2,914 
Total $ 1,056,767 

 
Due From  
General Fund $     562,556 
School District  290,774 
School Proprietary Funds 7,433 
Non-Major Governmental Funds   
  Special Revenue Funds – School 11,041 
  Capital Project Funds – Town 72,806 
  Capital Project Funds - School  111,861 
  Permanent Funds - Town  296 
Total $  1,056,767 

 
These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and 
(3) payments between funds are made. 
 
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2019, consisted of the following: 
  

Transfer To  
Non-Major Governmental Funds  
  Special Revenue Funds - School $ 2,542 
  Capital Project Funds - Town  336,500 
Total $ 339,042 

 
Transfer From  
General Fund $ 336,500 
School District  2,542 
Total $ 336,500 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
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JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 8 – INTERFUND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED) 
      
Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to 
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the 
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary 
authorizations. 
 
NOTE 9 – GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 
 
Previously, the Town implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund 
Type Definitions.  GASB Statement 54 clarifies the existing governmental fund type definitions and 
provides clearer fund balance categories and classifications. The hierarchical fund balance classification is 
based primarily upon the extent to which a government is bound to follow constraints on resources in 
governmental funds and includes the terms: nonspendable, committed, restricted, assigned, and unassigned.  
 
The Town’s fund balances represent: (1) Nonspendable Fund Balance, resources that cannot be spent 
because of legal or contractual provisions that require they be maintained intact. (e.g. the principal of an 
endowment). (2)  Restricted Purposes, which include balances that are legally restricted for specific 
purposes due to constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments; (3) Committed Purposes, which include balances that can only be used 
for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Selectmen;             
(4) Assigned Purposes, which includes balances that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used 
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.  (5) Unassigned Fund Balance, net 
resources in excess of what is properly categorized in one of the four categories already described. A 
positive amount of unassigned fund balance will never be reported in a governmental fund other than the 
general fund, because GASB Statement 54 prohibits reporting resources in another fund unless they are at 
least assigned to the purpose of that fund. However, funds other than the general fund could report a 
negative amount of unassigned fund balance should the total of nonspendable, restricted and committed 
fund balance exceed the total net resources of the fund.  
 
The Town of Vinalhaven has the responsibility for committing fund balance amounts and likewise 
would be required to modify or rescind those commitments.  When both restricted and unrestricted 
resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use restricted resources first, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. When committed, assigned, and unassigned resources are 
available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use committed or assigned resources first, then 
unassigned resources as they are needed.  
 
The Town’s General Fund unassigned fund balance total of $2,342,711 represents fund balance that 
has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to 
specific purposes within the General Fund.  Other fund balances per Exhibit III at year-end consisted 
of amounts which the Town of Vinalhaven intends to use for the following purposes: 
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JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 8 – INTERFUND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED) 
      
Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to 
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the 
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary 
authorizations. 
 
NOTE 9 – GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 
 
Previously, the Town implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund 
Type Definitions.  GASB Statement 54 clarifies the existing governmental fund type definitions and 
provides clearer fund balance categories and classifications. The hierarchical fund balance classification is 
based primarily upon the extent to which a government is bound to follow constraints on resources in 
governmental funds and includes the terms: nonspendable, committed, restricted, assigned, and unassigned.  
 
The Town’s fund balances represent: (1) Nonspendable Fund Balance, resources that cannot be spent 
because of legal or contractual provisions that require they be maintained intact. (e.g. the principal of an 
endowment). (2)  Restricted Purposes, which include balances that are legally restricted for specific 
purposes due to constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments; (3) Committed Purposes, which include balances that can only be used 
for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Selectmen;             
(4) Assigned Purposes, which includes balances that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used 
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.  (5) Unassigned Fund Balance, net 
resources in excess of what is properly categorized in one of the four categories already described. A 
positive amount of unassigned fund balance will never be reported in a governmental fund other than the 
general fund, because GASB Statement 54 prohibits reporting resources in another fund unless they are at 
least assigned to the purpose of that fund. However, funds other than the general fund could report a 
negative amount of unassigned fund balance should the total of nonspendable, restricted and committed 
fund balance exceed the total net resources of the fund.  
 
The Town of Vinalhaven has the responsibility for committing fund balance amounts and likewise 
would be required to modify or rescind those commitments.  When both restricted and unrestricted 
resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use restricted resources first, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. When committed, assigned, and unassigned resources are 
available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use committed or assigned resources first, then 
unassigned resources as they are needed.  
 
The Town’s General Fund unassigned fund balance total of $2,342,711 represents fund balance that 
has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to 
specific purposes within the General Fund.  Other fund balances per Exhibit III at year-end consisted 
of amounts which the Town of Vinalhaven intends to use for the following purposes: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 9 – GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 
       
 

Nonspendable  
Permanent Funds, Nonexpendable   
School District  
  L. Grant Duell Scholarship $ 20,000 
  Gwendolyn Green Scholarship  10,000 
  Philip and Miona Bennett Scholarship  5,200 
  Amy Cousens Scholarship  5,594 
  Madeline A. Hanley Nursing  1,850 
  Rubashkin Inspirational Scholarship  2,000 
  Otto C. Heddericg Scholarship  1,200 
  Total $ 45,844 
 
Town 

 

  Cemetery Funds  126,801 
  Mary Talbot Fund  54,140 
Total  $ 180,941 

 
Restricted  
Town  
  Sewer Hook Ups and Loans $ 20,870 
  Tax Incremental Financing  121,967 
Total $ 142,837 

 
Restricted   
Grants and Entitlement Purposes - School  
  Unemployment Fund $  33,834 
  Laptop  22,958 

    MLTI 1:1 Grant                                                                          7,600 
  PEPG Grant  4,600 
  Island Institute  4,262 
  MBNA Wall Lighting Grant  2,000 
  Regional Planning Grant  1,968 
  Professional Based Education Transition Grant  2,579 
  Friends of Library  115 

    Ticket to Ride                                                                                500 
  Girls Point of View  1,792 

    Kindermusik                                                                               1,235 
    EcoMaine                                                                            448 

  ITV  26 
  Garbage to Garden  72 
Total $ 83,989 
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JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 9 – GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 
      

 
Committed 

 

Capital Projects  
School District  
  Capital Projects and Improvements $ 176,289 
  Minor Capital Playground  26,778 
  Technology Reserve  24,328 
 
Town 

 

  Roads Capital Reserve       445,394 
  Sidewalk Reserve  381,190 
  Fire Department Equipment and Truck  153,456 
  Harbor Reserve  136,248 
  Ambulance Vehicle and Equipment  100,549 
  Lanes Island  83,000 
  Public Works Reserve  76,682 
  Carrying Place Bridge  68,788 
  Public Works Garage  39,489 
  Historical Sites  30,634 
  Planning Balance Carryforward  28,089 
  Ambulance Training  15,097 
  New Playground  333 
  Police Cruiser          10,000 
  Coastal Fund            5,345 
  Strategic Planning Fund            4,400 
  2019 Equipment Reserve            2,500 
  Parks Reserve  9,287 
  Equipment Replacement  5,482 
  Nativity Scene     2,597 
  Municipal Building        1,443 
  Landfill Compactor          35,278 
  Park Commission               957 
  Landfill Equipment               740 
  Library Reserve  19,924 
  Old Fire Hall  5,616 
Total $ 1,889,913 
  
Committed  
School District  
Appropriated for FY 2019/20 $ 200,000 
Town  
Appropriated for FY 2019/20  150,408 
Total $ 350,408 
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JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 9 – GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 
      

 
Committed 

 

Capital Projects  
School District  
  Capital Projects and Improvements $ 176,289 
  Minor Capital Playground  26,778 
  Technology Reserve  24,328 
 
Town 

 

  Roads Capital Reserve       445,394 
  Sidewalk Reserve  381,190 
  Fire Department Equipment and Truck  153,456 
  Harbor Reserve  136,248 
  Ambulance Vehicle and Equipment  100,549 
  Lanes Island  83,000 
  Public Works Reserve  76,682 
  Carrying Place Bridge  68,788 
  Public Works Garage  39,489 
  Historical Sites  30,634 
  Planning Balance Carryforward  28,089 
  Ambulance Training  15,097 
  New Playground  333 
  Police Cruiser          10,000 
  Coastal Fund            5,345 
  Strategic Planning Fund            4,400 
  2019 Equipment Reserve            2,500 
  Parks Reserve  9,287 
  Equipment Replacement  5,482 
  Nativity Scene     2,597 
  Municipal Building        1,443 
  Landfill Compactor          35,278 
  Park Commission               957 
  Landfill Equipment               740 
  Library Reserve  19,924 
  Old Fire Hall  5,616 
Total $ 1,889,913 
  
Committed  
School District  
Appropriated for FY 2019/20 $ 200,000 
Town  
Appropriated for FY 2019/20  150,408 
Total $ 350,408 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
NOTE 9 – GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED 
 

Assigned  
Permanent Unreserved Funds, Expendable  
School District  
  L. Grant Duell Scholarship $ 5,587 
  Fraser/Calderwood  10,670 
  Gwendolyn Green Scholarship  2,400 
  Amy Cousens Scholarship  222 
  Madeline A Hanley Nursing  652 
  Otto C. Heddericg Scholarship  1,382 
  Rubashkin Inspirational Scholarship  2,076 
  Philip and Miona Bennett Scholarship  36 
Town  
  Harriet Chatfield Trust  139,743 
  Cemetery Funds  32,568 
  Mary Talbot Fund   13,840 
Total $ 209,176 
  
Committed  
School District $ 229,473 

 
Assigned  
Cemetery Restoration Reserve $ 10,000 
  
Unassigned   
General Fund $ 2,342,711 
Non-Major Capital Projects Fund Deficits - Town  
  Public Works Garage Bonded Project Fund  (61,553) 
  Public Works Bridge Bonded Project Fund  (555) 
  Public Works Paving Bonded Project Fund  (595) 
Non-Major Special Revenue Fund Deficits - School  
  ESEA  (6,043) 
  Marine Trades  (1,042) 
  Grants Coordinator             (854) 
  Other  (410) 
Total $ 2,271,659 
  
Grand Total $ 5,414,240 
  

 
Certain of these amounts must be earmarked to conform to State Law and comply with Federal 
Regulations. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
NOTE 10 – NET POSITION – BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES 
 
The unrestricted net position of the Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds for the School 
District consist of the following balances at June 30, 2019: 
 

  Smith Hokansen Memorial Hall $ 41 
Total $ 41 

 
NOTE 11 – RETIREMENT PLANS  
 

I. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MEPERS) 
 

A. Plan Description  
Qualifying personnel of the School District participate in the Maine Public Employees 
Retirement System. The plan is a multiple employer, cost-sharing pension plan with a 
special funding situation.  The State of Maine is a non-employer contributing entity in that 
the state pays the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) on behalf of the teachers, while the 
District contributes the normal cost, which is actuarially calculated.  MEPERS is established 
under Maine law found in 5 MRSA Part 20. The authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions rests with the State legislature. 

 
B. Funding Policy 

All teachers participate in this pension plan, while the District makes available to all other 
eligible employees the option to make a one-time irrevocable election to participate in the 
Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MEPERS), State Employees and Teachers 
Plan. The employee shall pay, through payroll deduction(s), his/her required contribution 
determined by MEPERS, 7.65%. The School shall pay its required contribution determined 
by MEPERS. This benefit shall be offered to eligible employees on the date of hire.  
 

C. Pension Benefits 
Benefit terms are established in Maine Statute. The System’s retirement programs provide 
defined retirement benefits based on member’s average final compensation and service credit 
earned as of retirement. Vesting (i.e. eligibility of benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs 
upon the earning of 25 years of service credit for District employees.  Normal retirement age 
of State Employees and Teachers members is age 60 to 65. The normal retirement age is 
determined by whether a member had met certain creditable service requirements on specific 
dates, as established by statute. The monthly benefit of members who retire before normal 
retirement age by virtue of having at least 25 years of service credit is reduced by a statutorily 
prescribed factor for each year of age that a member is below her/his normal retirement age at 
retirement. The System also provides disability and death benefits which are established by 
statute for State employee and teacher members.  

 
Upon termination of membership, members’ accumulated employee contributions are 
refundable with interest, credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of accumulated 
contributions results in forfeiture of all benefits and membership rights. The annual interest 
credited to member’s accounts is set by the System’s Board of Trustees.  
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NOTE 11 – RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 

 
D. Member and Employer Contributions 

Retirement benefits are funded by contributions from members and employers and by earnings 
on investments. Disability and death benefits are funded by employer normal cost 
contributions and by investment earnings. Member and employer contribution rates are each a 
percentage of applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law 
or Board rule and depend on the terms of the plan under which a member is covered. Employer 
contributions rates are determined through actuarial valuations. For the year ended June 30, 
2019, the member contribution rate was 7.65%, the District’s contribution rate was 3.97% 
(normal cost), and the State of Maine contributed 11.68% (UAL). 

 
E. Revenue Recognition 

Employer contributions to the System are recognized as additions in the period when they 
become due pursuant to formal commitments or statutory requirements. Investment income is 
recognized when earned and investment expenses are recorded when incurred.  

 
F. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

  Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
At June 30, 2019, the District reported a net pension liability of $51,387.  The net pension 
liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by actuarial valuation as of that date. The District 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating members.  At the June 30, 2018 measurement date, the District proportion was 
0.003809%, compared to 0.003814% as of the June 30, 2017 measurement date. 
 
At June 30, 2019 the District’s reported net pension liability was a portion of the total 
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability associated with the District’s 
participation in the Teacher plan, as follows: 
 
District’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability          $             51,387 
State of Maine’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability       1,578,140 
      Total           $      1,629,527 

 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $182,420 
and State support of $117,425 at the government-wide level. Within the governmental fund 
financial statements, the District recognized on-behalf pension contributions from the State in 
the amount of $158,325 as revenues and offsetting expenditures.  
 
At June 30, 2019, the reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pension from the following sources are as follows: 
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NOTE 11 – RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 

 Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience  $ 1,570  $ 0 
   
Changes in Assumptions   3,232   0 
   
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on 
Pension Plan Investments   0   6,680 
   
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer 
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions.   1   2,712 
   
District Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date   70,184   0 
   
Total  $ 74,987  $ 9,392 

 
 

F. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
  Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

For the Year Ended June 30, Amount 
2020 $    71,617 
2021  529 
2022  (4,756) 
2023  (1,795) 
Total $ 65,595 

 
G. Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions applied to all period included in the measurement: 
 

 Inflation    2.75%  
 Salary Increases   2.75% to 14.50% 
 Investment Rate of Return  6.75% 
 Cost of Living Benefit Increases 2.20% 

 
For the District employees, the mortality rate is based on the RP2014 Total Dataset Mortality 
Tables for males and females.  The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates or return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense 
and inflation) are developed for each major class of assets. These ranges are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  
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NOTE 11 – RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of the June 30, 2018 valuation are summarized in the 
following table:  

 
Target 

Allocation 

Long-Term 
Expected Real Rate 

of Return 
US Equities  30.0% 6.0% 
U.S. Government  7.5% 2.3% 
Private Equity  15.0% 7.6% 
Real Assets:    
  Real Estate  10.0% 5.2% 
  Infrastructure  10.0% 5.3% 
  Natural Resources  5.0% 5.0% 
Traditional Credit  7.5% 3.0% 
Alternative Credit  5.0% 4.2% 
Diversifiers  10.0% 5.9% 
  

 100.0% 
 

 
H. Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of 
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contribution will 
be made the current contribution rate and that employer and non-employer entity 
contributions will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on 
these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  

 
 

I. Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
  Discount Rate 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the District proportionate share 
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 
percentage point lower (5.75%) or 1 percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:  
 

 
 

1% Decrease 
(5.75%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(6.75%) 
1% Increase 

(7.75%) 
Proportionate Share of the Net 
  Pension Liability $94,963 $51,387 $15,095 
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NOTE 11 – RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 

J. Pension Plan Financial and Actuarial Information 
Additional financial information and actuarial information can be found in the Maine PERS  
2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report available online or by contacting the System 
at (207) 512-3100. 
 

II. Deferred Compensation Plan – IRA OR 457(b) Account 
 
The Town of Vinalhaven provides full time employees with a retirement benefit of 6% of the 
individuals gross annual earnings, not including overtime, to be deposited in an IRA or 457(b) 
account.  An employee shall have the option to match any or all of the employer contributed amount.  
IRA and 457(b) administration is subject to applicable Federal and State regulations.  The Town’s 
total employer contributions under this plan for the year ended June 30, 2019 amounted to $21,653. 
 
NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Town of Vinalhaven and School Administrative District No. 8 participate in numerous State 
and Federal grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor 
agencies.  Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the 
grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that they have not complied with the rules and regulations 
governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectability of any 
related receivable at June 30, 2019, may be impaired.  In the opinion of the Town and School 
District, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and 
regulations governing the respective agents; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the 
accompanying combined financial statements for such contingencies. 
 
Subsequent to the fiscal year end the School District underwent an audit performed by MEPERS. 
During that audit, which has not been completed, it was determined that the School had failed to 
remit certain employer and employee pension contributions due to MEPERS. The total obligation 
arising as of June 30, 2019 will not be known until MEPERS completes its examination subsequent 
to the date of these financial statements. It’s expected that the audit will be completed early in 2020. 
 
NOTE 13 – TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING 
 
On November 5, 2009 the inhabitants of the Town of Vinalhaven qualified by law to vote approved 
the Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District (Fox Island Wind Project) 
and adopted the Development Program for such District presented at a Special Town Meeting.  Fox 
Island Wind, LLC (FIW) proposed to construct three 1.5-megawatt wind turbines in the District at a 
cost of $14.5 million.  The District’s means and objectives are to capture and retain all (100%) of 
this increased assessed value from both real and personal property improvements in the District.  
The Town will allocate a portion of the tax increment revenue attributable to the FIW Project to 
FIW to help finance costs of the Project.  The Town will retain 10% of the balance of the Tax 
increment revenue attributable to the Project to help finance public improvements.  Allocation to 
FIW of 90% is pursuant to a Credit Enhancement Agreement between the Town and FIW dated 
July 1, 2010.  The term of 30 years runs from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2040.   
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NOTE 11 – RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 

J. Pension Plan Financial and Actuarial Information 
Additional financial information and actuarial information can be found in the Maine PERS  
2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report available online or by contacting the System 
at (207) 512-3100. 
 

II. Deferred Compensation Plan – IRA OR 457(b) Account 
 
The Town of Vinalhaven provides full time employees with a retirement benefit of 6% of the 
individuals gross annual earnings, not including overtime, to be deposited in an IRA or 457(b) 
account.  An employee shall have the option to match any or all of the employer contributed amount.  
IRA and 457(b) administration is subject to applicable Federal and State regulations.  The Town’s 
total employer contributions under this plan for the year ended June 30, 2019 amounted to $21,653. 
 
NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Town of Vinalhaven and School Administrative District No. 8 participate in numerous State 
and Federal grant programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor 
agencies.  Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the 
grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that they have not complied with the rules and regulations 
governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectability of any 
related receivable at June 30, 2019, may be impaired.  In the opinion of the Town and School 
District, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and 
regulations governing the respective agents; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the 
accompanying combined financial statements for such contingencies. 
 
Subsequent to the fiscal year end the School District underwent an audit performed by MEPERS. 
During that audit, which has not been completed, it was determined that the School had failed to 
remit certain employer and employee pension contributions due to MEPERS. The total obligation 
arising as of June 30, 2019 will not be known until MEPERS completes its examination subsequent 
to the date of these financial statements. It’s expected that the audit will be completed early in 2020. 
 
NOTE 13 – TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING 
 
On November 5, 2009 the inhabitants of the Town of Vinalhaven qualified by law to vote approved 
the Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District (Fox Island Wind Project) 
and adopted the Development Program for such District presented at a Special Town Meeting.  Fox 
Island Wind, LLC (FIW) proposed to construct three 1.5-megawatt wind turbines in the District at a 
cost of $14.5 million.  The District’s means and objectives are to capture and retain all (100%) of 
this increased assessed value from both real and personal property improvements in the District.  
The Town will allocate a portion of the tax increment revenue attributable to the FIW Project to 
FIW to help finance costs of the Project.  The Town will retain 10% of the balance of the Tax 
increment revenue attributable to the Project to help finance public improvements.  Allocation to 
FIW of 90% is pursuant to a Credit Enhancement Agreement between the Town and FIW dated 
July 1, 2010.  The term of 30 years runs from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2040.   
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NOTE 14 – OVERLAPPING DEBT 
 
The Town’s proportionate share of Knox County’s debt is not recorded in the financial statements of 
the Town of Vinalhaven.  At June 30, 2017, the latest date for which information is available, the 
Town’s share was 6.6% or $118,185 of the Knox County outstanding debt of $1,790,680. 
 
NOTE 15 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
A. - Budgetary Accounting 
 
The Town of Vinalhaven utilizes a formal budgetary accounting system to control revenues and 
expenditures accounted for in the General Fund. This budget is established by the Board of 
Selectmen and must be approved at the Annual Town Meeting.  
 
B. - Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations and Deficit Balances 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, expenditures did not exceed appropriations. Exhibit VII shows no 
overdrafts. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of individual funds that have deficit 
balances at year-end.  As of June 30, 2019, four special revenue funds and three capital projects 
funds carried deficit balances as identified in Note 9. 
 
NOTE 16 – OPEB PLANS 
 
I. Group Health Insurance Plan – Maine Municipal Employee Health Trust (MMEHT) 

 
Plan Description 
Qualifying personnel of the Town participate in the MMEHT Group Health Plan. This plan 
is a single-employer OPEB plan not administered through a trust or similar arrangement.  
Accordingly, no assets are accumulated within the plan for the payment of future benefits. 

 
 Benefits 

Under the Health Plan, MMEHT provides healthcare and life insurance benefits for retirees 
and their dependents.  Town employees over the age of 55 with at least 5 years of 
continuous service are allowed to participate in the plan.  Retirees that are designated in a 
plan pay 100% of the single coverage premium and 100% of the family coverage premium.  
At January 1, 2019 there were twelve active employees participating in this plan and no 
inactive employees, retirees or beneficiaries entitled to and/or receiving benefits. 

 
 OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

  Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
The Town’s total Health Plan OPEB liability of $70,102 was measured as of January 1, 2019 
and was determined by an actuarial valuation at that date.  For the year ended June 30, 2019 
the Town recognized OPEB expense of $7,532 related to the Health Plan.  At June 30, 2019 
the Town reported deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources related to 
the Health Plan from the following sources: 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 16 – OPEB PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
 Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience  $ 1,754  $ 0 
   
Changes in Assumptions    8,921   6,614 
   
   
Total  $ 10,675  $ 6,614 

 
 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

 
For the Year Ended June 30, Amount 

2020 $ 835 
2021  835 
2022  835 
2023  835 
2024  835 

Thereafter  (114) 
  

Total $ 4,061 
 

The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions applied to all period included in the measurement: 
 

 Inflation     3.00% 
 Salary Increases   2.75%  
 Discount Rate    4.10% 
 Healthcare Cost Trend Rates  8.00% for 2019, decreasing 0.28% per year 
 Retirees’ Share of Benefit Costs 100% of projected premiums 

 
For the Health Plan, the mortality rate is based on the RP2014 Total Dataset Mortality Tables 
for males and females. 
 
The discount rate of 4.10% used to measure the Health Plan OPEB liability was based upon 
high quality AA/Aa or higher bond yields in effect for 20 years, tax-exempt general obligation 
municipal bonds using the Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index. 
 
The following presents the Town’s total OPEB liability related to the Health Plan calculated 
using the discount rate of 4.10%, as well as what the liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (3.10%) or 1 percentage point higher 
(5.10%) than the current rate:  
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 16 – OPEB PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
 Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience  $ 1,754  $ 0 
   
Changes in Assumptions    8,921   6,614 
   
   
Total  $ 10,675  $ 6,614 

 
 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

 
For the Year Ended June 30, Amount 

2020 $ 835 
2021  835 
2022  835 
2023  835 
2024  835 

Thereafter  (114) 
  

Total $ 4,061 
 

The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions applied to all period included in the measurement: 
 

 Inflation     3.00% 
 Salary Increases   2.75%  
 Discount Rate    4.10% 
 Healthcare Cost Trend Rates  8.00% for 2019, decreasing 0.28% per year 
 Retirees’ Share of Benefit Costs 100% of projected premiums 

 
For the Health Plan, the mortality rate is based on the RP2014 Total Dataset Mortality Tables 
for males and females. 
 
The discount rate of 4.10% used to measure the Health Plan OPEB liability was based upon 
high quality AA/Aa or higher bond yields in effect for 20 years, tax-exempt general obligation 
municipal bonds using the Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index. 
 
The following presents the Town’s total OPEB liability related to the Health Plan calculated 
using the discount rate of 4.10%, as well as what the liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (3.10%) or 1 percentage point higher 
(5.10%) than the current rate:  
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 16 – OPEB PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 

 
1% Decrease 

(3.10%) 
Current Discount 

Rate (4.10%) 
1% Increase 

(5.10%) 
  Total OPEB Liability $81,992 $70,102 $60,466 

 
The following presents the Town’s total OPEB liability related to the Health Plan calculated 
using the healthcare cost trend rate of 8.00% decreasing 0.28% per year, as well as what the 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
(7.00% decreasing 0.28% per year) or 1 percentage point higher (9.00% decreasing 0.28% 
per year) than the current rate:  

 1% Decrease 
Health Care Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase  
  Total OPEB Liability $59,662 $70,102 $83,353 

 
II. Group Life Insurance Plan - Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MEPERS) 

 
Plan Description 
Qualifying personnel of the School District participate in the Maine Public Employees 
Retirement System, including that system’s Group Life Insurance Plan.  This plan is a 
multiple employer, cost-sharing OPEB plan with a special funding situation.  The State of 
Maine is a non-employer contributing entity in that the state pays 100% of the actuarially 
determined contributions for retirees.  

 
 Benefits 

Under the GLI OPEB plan, MPERS provides basic group life insurance benefits, during 
retirement, to retirees who participated in the plan prior to retirement for a minimum of 10 
years. The level of coverage is initially set to an amount equal to the retirees average final 
compensation. The initial amount of basic life is then subsequently reduced at the rate of 
15% per year to the greater of 40% of the initial amount or $2,500. 

 
 OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

  Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
At June 30, 2019, the District reported a net OPEB liability of $0, as the State of Maine’s non-
employer contributing entity required participation level is 100%.  At June 30, 2019 the 
District’s reported net OPEB liability was a portion of the total proportionate share of the 
collective net OPEB liability associated with the School Department’s participation in the 
Teacher plan, as follows: 

 
District’s Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability    $             0 
 
State of Maine’s Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability         15,389 
 
      Total    $    15,389 
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TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 

NOTE 16 – OPEB PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $1,485, 
State support of $1,485, and on-behalf payments of $1,404.  
 
No deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources arising in connection with 
this plan are reportable by the School Department given that the State of Maine is obligated to 
fund 100% of the actuarially required contributions attributable to retirees. 
 
Plan Financial and Actuarial Information 
Additional financial information and actuarial information can be found in the Maine PERS  
2018 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report available online at www.mainepers.org or by 
contacting the System at (207) 512-3100. 

 
III.  Group Health Insurance Plan – Maine Education Association Benefits Trust (MEABT) 

 
The School District provides health insurance benefits to its employees through a group plan 
administered through the Maine Education Association Benefits Trust.  Under this plan, retirees are 
eligible to continue such coverage post-employment, with the premium cost being born by the State 
of Maine and the retirees, with no ongoing financial obligation on the part of the School 
Department.  The amount, if any, of OPEB liability and similar amounts arising from any implicit 
rate subsidy existing under this plan has not been determined. 
 

 
NOTE 17 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 17, 2020, the date on which the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
 
As of the date of this report, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to spread through all areas of the 
world, including Knox County in Maine. The ultimate impact of this health crisis on the financial 
condition of the Town is not knowable at this time. 
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EXHIBIT XII 
 

 
TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE  

OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 6/30/19 6/30/18 6/30/17 6/30/16 6/30/15 
      
District’s Proportion of Net Pension Liability 0.003809% 0.003814% 0.004364% 0.003194% 0.000678% 
      
District’s Proportionate Share of the Net   
Pension Liability 

 
$      51,387 

 
$      55,400 

 
$        77,097 

 
$        43,123 

 
$       7,325 

State of Maine’s Proportionate Share of the  
   Net Pension Liability 

 
   1,578,140 

 
   1,777,819 

 
     2,284,473 

 
     1,561,505 

 
  1,205,897  

   
 

 
Total  $ 1,629,527 $ 1,833,219 $   2,361,570 $   1,604,628 $1,213,222 
      
District’s Covered Employee Payroll $ 1,483,641 $ 1,526,050 $  1,452,540 $  1,371,239 $1,242,152 
      
District’s Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability as a Percentage of Its 
Covered Employee Payroll 

 
 

3.46% 

 
 

3.63% 5.31% 3.14% 0.59% 
      
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of 
the Total Pension Liability 

 
85.17% 

 
83.35% 76.21% 88.27% 94.10% 

 
Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30. The data above was 
determined by the actuarial valuation date which was one year prior to the audit report date.  
Retroactive information is not required to be presented. A full 10-year schedule will be 
displayed as it becomes available. 
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EXHIBIT XIII 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 6/30/19 6/30/18 6/30/17 6/30/16 6/30/15 
      
 
Contractually Required 
Contribution 

 
 
$     70,184             

 
 
$ 63,686  $ 56,190 

 
 
$ 54,229  $ 41,692 

      
Actual Contribution       (70,184)   (63,686)   (56,190)         (54,229)   (41,692) 
      
Contribution Deficiency 
(Excess) 

$              0 $ 0  $ 0 $ 0  $ 0 

      
Covered Employee 
Payroll 

 
$1,604,159 

 
$1,483,641 $ 1,526,050 

 
$ 1,452,240 $ 1,371,239 

      
Contributions as a 
Percentage of Covered 
Employee Payroll 

 
 

4.29% 

 
 

4.29% 3.68% 3.73% 3.04% 
 

Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30. The data above was 
determined for the District’s fiscal years indicated, which differs from the reporting timeframes 
used in Schedule I.  Retroactive information is not required to be presented. A full 10-year 
schedule will be displayed as it becomes available. 

 
 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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EXHIBIT XIV 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE  
OF NET OPEB LIABILITY – GROUP LIFE PLAN 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
 

 6/30/19 6/30/18 
   
District’s Proportion of Net  
OPEB Liability 

 
0.00% 

 
0.00% 

   
District’s Proportionate Share 
   of the Net OPEB Liability  

 
$                   0 

 
$ 0 

State of Maine’s Proportionate Share of  
   the Net OPEB Liability 

 
            15,389    

 
  14,892 

Total $          15,389 $ 14,892 
   
School Department’s Covered Employee Payroll $     1,604,169  $ 1,483,641 
   
School Department’s Proportionate Share of the  
Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Its Covered  
Employee Payroll 

 
 

0.00% 

 
 

0.00% 
   
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the  
Total OPEB Liability 

 
60.14% 

 
60.11% 

   
   
Contractually Required Contributions $                0 $ 0 
Contributions Made in Relation to Contractually Required Amounts                 (0)   (0) 
Contribution Excess (Deficiency) $                0 $ 0 
   
Town’s Covered Employee Payroll $   1,604,169 $ 1,483,641 
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll      0.00% 0.00% 
   

 
Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30. The data above was 
determined by the actuarial valuation date which was one year prior to the audit report date.  
Retroactive information is not required to be presented. A full 10-year schedule will be 
displayed as it becomes available. 

 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
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EXHIBIT XV 
 

TOWN OF VINALHAVEN 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE  
OF NET OPEB LIABILITY – GROUP HEALTH PLAN 

JUNE 30, 2019 
 
 

      6/30/19            6/30/18 
   
Service Cost $        4,538  $                    3,214 
Interest           2,590   2,071 
Changes of Benefit Terms             0   0 
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience             0   2,340 
Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs     (7,559)   11,895 
Benefit Payments            (431)   (253) 
Net Changes        (862)   19,267 
   
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning         70,964   51,697 
Total OPEB Liability - Ending $      70,102  $ 70,964 
   
Covered-Employee Payroll $    469,357  $ 469,357 
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered-
Employee Payroll 

 
14.9% 

 
15.1% 

   
   

 
Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior January 1. The data above 
was determined as of the actuarial valuation date (as updated, if applicable) which was six-months 
prior to the audit report date.  Retroactive information is not required to be presented. A full 10-
year schedule will be displayed as it becomes available. 

 
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement. 
 
 
Notes to the RSI: 
 
Significant Changes in Benefit Terms: None 
Significant Changes in Assumptions: None, Other Than An Increase In Discount Rate From 3.44% 

To 4.10% 
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